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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202312249
21st Century Community Learning Centers

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Education

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	February 7, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	February 14, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	April 10, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Public Notice,
Page 3
	When and where can the informational webinar for the RFP be accessed?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on pages 1 and 3 of the RFP document, the informational webinar for the RFP was posted to the Department’s application website at https://maine.egrantsmanagement.com/ on January 24, 2024.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C
Page 10
	We have somewhat of a unique situation and are not sure if our intended proposal would meet the eligibility requirements for the RFP; is there someone that can help us determine our eligibility?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on pages 17 and 18 of the RFP document, interested Bidders must submit a completed Intent to Apply Form, using the template provided in Appendix F of the RFP, to the RFP Coordinator. Bidder eligibility will then be determined by the Department and communicated with the Bidder through a formal response letter.  


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C
Page 10
	If our lead partner is a school organization, are they required to make any contributions to the overall program budget other than the required 35% of the annual transportation cost?

	
	Answer

	
	In terms of eligibility criteria, the RFP requires that each school organization included in a 21st CCLC grant proposal must contribute a minimum of 35% of the overall cost of transporting its students to and from the 21st CCLC program annually. 


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C
Page 10
	The RFP states, “where at least 2/3 of the students the bidder proposes to serve attend…” an eligible school. Does this “2/3” measurement pertain to the individual schools being served or the individual students being served?

	
	Answer

	
	As stated on page 10 of the RFP document at least 2/3 of the students served by the program must attend a Maine school that meets the program eligibility requirements set forth in the RFP. For example, if a grant proposal were to include three (3) program sites and 120 RLP students, at least 2/3 of those RLP students (or 80 RLP students) must attend a Maine school that meets the eligibility requirements set forth in the RFP.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C
Page 10
	If a 21st CCLC grant award is up for renewal but the targeted student population (grade levels, number of students, etc.) in the targeted school(s) has changed due to school reorganization, is it possible to still apply for funding?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes; applicants that find themselves in this sort of situation could still submit a 21st CCLC grant application, provided that the school(s) in question still meet the eligibility criteria set forth within the RFP document. 


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C
Page 10
	If a 21st CCLC grant award is up for renewal and the grantee organization plans to reapply but also change the location of one of its program sites (due to a current site no longer meeting the eligibility requirements of the RFP), would the resulting proposal be considered a renewal, expansion, or new proposal under the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	For a bidder whose current 21st CCLC grant award expires on 6/30/24 and wishes to reapply for a 21st CCLC grant award that (a) adds an additional program site or (b) shifts one of its existing program sites to a new program site, the resulting proposal would be considered an “expansion proposal”, as outlined on page 10 of the RFP. Page 12 of the RFP also states that, “multi-site programs must operate at least two but no more than three grant-funded program sites.” Bidders must adhere to all requirements of the RFP, based upon the total number of program sites and RLP students included within the proposal.


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C
Page 10
	Could a Bidder submit an expansion proposal in 2025-2026 for a renewal award made under the current RFP or would the Bidder need to submit a separate grant proposal in 2025-2026?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on page 12 of the RFP document, all contract awards resulting from this RFP shall include an initial 12-month period of performance and up to three (3) renewal periods, for a total award up to four (4) consecutive years. Page 11 of the RFP also states that, “there may be only one 21st CCLC program per school building or other community facility, and the same children may not be served by more than one program.” While it’s not possible to speculate on a future RFP, a new award is generally not possible until a current award is set to expire.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section F
Page 12
	What is the award term for a renewal proposal for an existing grant that was previously awarded for a total of 5 years?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on page 12 of the RFP document, all contract awards resulting from this RFP shall include an initial 12-month period of performance and up to three (3) renewal periods, for a total award up to four (4) consecutive years. 


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section B
Page 15
	The RFP states that a program director must be employed “year-round”; does this mean for 52 weeks per year?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes; the “year-round” employment requirement for the 21st CCLC program director noted within the RFP equates to a total of 52 weeks of employment annually.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI
Page 20
	How can an applicant gain access to the online 21st CCLC grant application?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on pages 17 and 18 of the RFP document, Bidders must complete and submit an Intent to Apply Form using the template provided in Appendix F of the RFP. This Intent to Apply Form, which must be submitted to the RFP Coordinator by the deadline noted within the RFP, serves to determine each Bidder’s eligibility for this RFP. Only Bidders who successfully complete the Intent to Apply process outlined within the RFP and who meet eligibility requirements will be given access to the online grant proposal. As noted on pages 20 and 31 of the RFP, all proposals must be completed using the Department’s proposal website at https://maine.egrantsmanagement.com/.


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix A
Page 29
	Is it possible for a school to only serve as a feeder school for part of the year (i.e. during the summer program and not the school year program)?

	
	Answer

	
	No; in order for a school to be included as a feeder school within a 21st CCLC grant proposal, the students enrolled in that feeder school must be able to participate in 21st CCLC programming throughout the entire year (i.e. both school year and summer programming).


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix C
Page 31
	For a Bidder submitting a renewal application, can the student demographic information provided in the proposal include a different number of (total, RLP, etc.) students to be served annually?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes; a Bidder seeking renewal funding may include updated student counts within its proposal. That said, Bidders are strongly advised to ensure that the number of RLP students they propose to be served annually are realistic, attainable, and represent a strong value to the State of Maine when compared to the level of 21st CCLC funding that is requested. As stated on page 13 of the RFP document, the Department also, “reserves the right to issue awards in amounts less than a bidder’s request…based on whether the requested amount is appropriate and reasonable for the size and scope of the program, as determined by the Department.” 


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix C
Page 35
	Can a full-time program director serve as a site coordinator for one of three program sites included in a multi-site grant application?

	
	Answer

	
	No; as stated on pages 62 and 63 of the RFP document, “directors of multi-site programs must not act as a permanent site coordinator for any site.” Pages 15, 47, and 62 of the RFP also state that multi-site programs must employ a site coordinator for each program site at a minimum of 20 hours per week performing work for specifically the 21st CCLC program.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix C
Page 37
	Can a 21st CCLC grant proposal include funding for a 15-passanger van to transport students to and from the resulting program?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on pages 38 and 44 of the RFP document, student transportation costs may be included in the budget of a 21st CCLC grant proposal. Transportation costs could include contracting with a bussing company or leasing a van specifically for the 21st CCLC program. However, 21st CCLC funds may not be used for the outright purchase of vehicle(s). 


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix C
Page 42
	Can a lead partner organization provide program staff as a subcontracted service and do those positions need to be outlined specifically in Form 003?

	
	Answer

	
	Partner organizations may provide staffing support to a 21st CCLC program through either in-kind contributions (no cost) or as a subcontracted service (cost). However, the fiscal agent for the 21st CCLC program must still maintain employment and direct oversight of the core staff necessary to carryout the proposed 21st CCLC program.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix C
Page 42
	Would the proposed budget on a renewal proposal be subject to the same annual cap on salary increases that exist for current 21st CCLC grant awards?

	
	Answer

	
	While the RFP does not specify a funding “cap” on salaries included within a 21st CCLC grant proposal, Bidders are encouraged to only request amounts that are both reasonable and necessary to effectively carry out the proposed program. 


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix F
Page 60
	Is the request amount included for year 1 on the Intent to Apply Form required to match our final submitted application exactly or can that amount deviate a small amount with our final application? 

	
	Answer

	
	The 21st CCLC request amount for year 1 of the program included in the Bidder’s Intent to Apply Form, once approved, must exactly match the 21st CCLC request amount on the Bidder’s final 21st CCLC grant proposal submission.


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VII, Appendix H
Page 68
	Is the list of schools provided in Appendix H a list of schools with current 21st CCLC programs? 

	
	Answer

	
	No; as noted on page 10 of the RFP document, the list of schools provided in Appendix H is a list of schools that in Maine that current implement schoolwide programs under Title I, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA). Schools listed in Appendix H would be considered eligible to be included as part of a 21st CCLC grant proposal, if not already served by another 21st CCLC grant program. 
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